
 
 
 

1 of 2 
 

Implementation Board  
Business Meeting Agenda 
August 10, 2022  

Agenda 
 

Time Item 

2:00pm – 2:15pm 
 

 
 

Welcome  

 

1. Welcome, Roll Call of Implementation Board (Simha Reddy) 

- Members, Mission Statement, and Theory of Change 

 

2. Land Acknowledgement (Simha Reddy) 

 

3. Public Comment Sign-Up 

- Public Comment will be 10 minutes 

- Public Comment must directly address a portion of the agenda. 

- Each person will have 2 minutes for public comment. 

 

Result: Everyone feels welcomed and participants are confirmed. 

2:15pm – 2:20pm Consent Agenda (Simha Reddy) 

 

1. July Board Retreat Minutes 

 

Result:  Board members vote to approve/disapprove.  

2:20pm – 2:30pm Public Comment (Simha Reddy) 

 

Result:  Public comment is heard. 

2:30pm – 3:00pm CEO Update Report (Marc Dones) 

 

Result: The Board receives an update of ongoing activities from the CEO. 

3:00pm – 3:15pm Topic:  Implementation Board Bylaws 

 

Result: The Board reviews and discusses draft bylaws. 



 
 
 

2 of 2 
 

3:15pm – 4:00pm Equity-Based Decision Making (Erin Bryant-Thomas) 

 

Result: Board members review and understand our anti-racist approach 

4:00pm Adjourn (Simha Reddy) 

 

The next meeting of the Implementation Board will be held on September 

14th, 2022. The physical meeting location will be announced on the 

KCRHA website (Implementation Board section) prior to the meeting.  

 

Board Chair: Simha Reddy 

Note-Taker: Parker Schulze 

August 10th, 2022 (2:00pm – 4:00pm) 

Location: Auburn City Council Chambers 

       25 West Main Street 

                  Auburn, WA 98001 

Mission: The mission of the King County Regional Homelessness Authority is to significantly 

decrease the incidence of homelessness throughout King County by centering customer voice to 

respond to needs and eliminate inequities.  

Theory of Change: If we create a homeless response system that centers customer voice, then 

we will be able to focus on meeting needs and eliminating inequities, in order to end 

homelessness for all. 



 

 

Implementation Board Retreat 
Minutes for July 9, 2022 
 

Time Item 

10:30am – 10:45am Topic:  Informal Greetings/Getting Settled 

 

Board Members Present: 

 

1. Simha Reddy 

2. John Chelminiak 

3. Nate Caminos 

4. Waneta Spotted-Elk 

 
10:45am – 11:00am 

 

Topic:  Welcome/Check-in (Facilitator, Michael Pendleton) 

  

11:00am – 11:20am Topic:  CEO Remarks (Marc Dones) 

 

CEO Dones updated the Board on recent accomplishments that the 

KCRHA has achieved. Additionally, they answered questions regarding 

potential future pathways for success, introduced the Board Liaison in-

person, and discussed their thoughts on the organization as a whole. 

  

11:20am – 12:35pm Topic:  Implementation Board Roles & Responsibilities (Michael 

Pendleton) 

 

Mr. Pendleton spoke with the Board regarding the ways they are able to 

implement change while still adhering to important legal and social 

constraints. He stressed the importance of guiding principles, achieving 

good for the largest number of people, and the nuances of public office. 

 

Desired Result: IB members and RHA staff have a common 

                          understanding of IB roles and responsibilities. 

 

 
12:35pm – 12:45pm 

 

BREAK 

 

 
12:45pm – 1:00pm 

 

PICK UP BOX LUNCH 

 



 

 

1:00pm – 2:15 pm Topic:  5-Year Plan (Marc Dones) 

 

CEO Dones presented a workshop to the Board. Their presentation 

included hands-on activities, discussions about various topics, and 

allowed Board members to interact within the 5-Year Planning concept.  

 

A copy of this presentation is available upon request. 

 

Desired Result:  IB members are briefed on the community engagement  

                            work underway and provide input to the 5-Year Plan. 

2:15pm – 3:20pm  Topic:  Equity-Based Decision-Making Framework (Erin Bryant- 

              Thomas) 

 

This item was moved to the next meeting due to time constraints. 

 

3:20pm – 3:30pm Concluding Remarks (Marc Dones) 

 

CEO Dones thanked the Board for their participation and noted that future 

meetings should potentially have some calendaring changes, vacancies on 

the Board will need to be filled, and Board members are encouraged to 

attend Board meetings in-person if they so choose. 

 



 

 

KING COUNTY REGIONAL HOMELESSNESS AUTHORITY 

 

IMPLEMENTATION BOARD BYLAWS 

 

Article I. Authority 

 

Section 1.01 Authority; Purpose. 

 

The “Interlocal Agreement for the Establishment of the King County Regional Homelessness 

Authority” dated December 18, 2019 (as it may be amended and supplemented, the “Interlocal 

Agreement”) between King County (the “County”) and the City of Seattle (“Seattle”), creates an 

Implementation Board (the “Implementation Board” or “Board”).  The Board is responsible for 

the operations and management of the King County Regional Homelessness Authority (the 

“Authority”) and provides strategic vision, community accountability and robust oversight for 

the Authority by performing the duties established therein.   

 

The purpose of these bylaws (“Bylaws”) is to establish procedures for Implementation Board 

operations.  These Bylaws are adopted by the Board pursuant to Article IX, Section 2(j)(vi) of 

the Interlocal Agreement.  

 

Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings set forth in the Interlocal 

Agreement. 

 

Section 1.02 Guiding Principles.   

 

[Include this paragraph to reiterate importance of this language or omit since covered by 

Interlocal Agreement?] Actions of the Authority and its governing bodies, including the Board, 

will adhere to and be informed by the Interlocal Agreement, including but not limited to, the 

Guiding Principles outlined in Article IV, Section 3 of the Interlocal Agreement, an equity based 

decision-making framework as articulated in Article VIII, Section 2(m) of the Interlocal 

Agreement, a theory of change, and evidenced-based practices.   

 

Article II. Implementation Board Membership 

 

Section 2.01 Membership Generally.   

 

The Board is comprised of 13 members appointed pursuant to Article VIII, Section 2 of the 

Interlocal Agreement.  Implementation Board Members shall be comprised of individuals 

representing the characteristics and holding the expertise and skills set forth in Article VIII, 

Section 2(a) of the Interlocal Agreement.  All Implementation Board Members shall have equal 

status, voting rights and authority; provided, however, the Co-Chairs, the Treasurer and the 

Secretary (each as defined below) and other officers of the Board (if any) may have additional 

responsibilities as set forth herein and in policies and procedures of the Board.  

 



 

 -2- 

Section 2.02 Implementation Board Term. 

 

Members of the Implementation Board shall serve terms as provided in Article VIII, Section 2(c)  

and (d) of the Interlocal Agreement.  Except as otherwise provided in the Interlocal Agreement 

with respect to initial appointments, Implementation Board Members shall serve four-year terms 

(or such shorter period, if appointed to fulfill a term or removed as provided in the Interlocal 

Agreement and/or these Bylaws).  Implementation Board Members may serve no more than two 

successive terms.   

 

Any Implementation Board Member may be deemed to have forfeited such individual’s position 

as an Implementation Board Member and may be removed from such position as provided in the 

Interlocal Agreement.  In particular, any Implementation Board Member who is absent for three 

consecutive regular meetings without excuse may, by resolution adopted by a majority vote of 

the then Implementation Board Members and such action concurred by a majority of the 

Governing Committee, be deemed to have forfeited such position on the Board and that position 

shall become vacant.  Furthermore, if at least a majority of the Implementation Board determines 

that a Board Member should be removed with or without cause and such action is concurred by a 

majority of the Governing Committee, the Governing Committee may by resolution remove such 

Board Member and that position shall become vacant.  Such forfeiture and/or removal may be 

effective immediately. 

 

Section 2.03 Vacancies. 

 

A vacancy or vacancies on the Implementation Board shall be deemed to exist in the case of the 

death, disability, resignation, removal by forfeiture or removal by the Governing Committee or if 

the individual is no longer eligible for such appointment.  Any vacancy on the Implementation 

Board shall be filled in the same manner as the original appointment.  Vacancies during an 

unexpired term shall be filled as soon as reasonably possible for the remainder of the unexpired 

term.  

 

Section 2.04 Alternates. 

 

[Question for discussion – role and selection of alternates, if any] 

 

[Each Implementation Board Member may have one alternate (an “Alternate”) to serve on the 

Implementation Board in the absence of such Member.  Each Implementation Board Member is 

responsible for notifying the Implementation Board of the name of the Alternate, if any, for such 

Member. Either the primary Implementation Board Member or such Member’s Alternate may 

attend meetings; provided, however, if both representatives are in attendance at a meeting of the 

Implementation Board, only the primary Implementation Board Member shall be included for 

purposes of establishing a quorum and voting on matters before the Implementation Board.  If an 

Alternate is serving in a meeting on behalf of an Implementation Board Member, such Alternate 

shall have all of the rights and authority of the primary Implementation Board Member under the 

Interlocal Agreement and these Bylaws, including but not limited to establishing a quorum and 

voting on matters before the Implementation Board. When an Implementation Board Member is 

represented by a designated Alternate, the Member is considered to have an excused absence 



 

 -3- 

from the meeting and is not subject to forfeiting their seat as outlined herein or in the Interlocal 

Agreement.] 

 

Article III. Implementation Board Officers and Committees 

 

Section 3.01 Officers of the Implementation Board. 

 

The Implementation Board shall have a Chairperson, a Co-Chairperson, a Treasurer and a 

Secretary, each as described below.  The Implementation Board may elect other officers and 

assistant officers as may be determined to be necessary.  No person may simultaneously hold 

more than one office.  In addition to the powers and duties specified below, the officers shall 

have such powers and perform such duties as the Implementation Board may prescribe. 

 

Section 3.02 Co-Chairs, Treasurer, and Secretary. 

 

 (a)  Co-Chairs.  The Implementation Board Members shall elect from its membership two 

Chairpersons (each a “Chair,” a “Co-Chair,” a “Chairperson” or a “Co-Chairperson”).  Each Co-

Chair shall serve in such position for a one-year term.   

 

It shall be each Co-Chair’s duty to see that the transaction of Implementation Board business is 

in accordance with law, the Interlocal Agreement, and these Bylaws.  Each Co-Chair of the 

Implementation Board shall have the following authority and responsibilities: to jointly preside 

at regular and special meetings of the Implementation Board; to jointly call special meetings as 

determined to be appropriate; and to each execute documents requiring approval of the 

Implementation Board (such as resolutions of the Implementation Board).  On resolutions 

approved by the Implementation Board, the signature of one Co-Chair or the Co-Chair presiding 

at the meeting where the resolution was approved shall be sufficient to bind the Authority.     

 

The Co-Chair in attendance at any meeting shall perform the duties of both Co-Chairs without 

further authorization in the event that the other Co-Chair is unable to attend.  If neither Co-Chair 

is able to attend an Implementation Board meeting, Implementation Board Members then in 

attendance shall elect, by majority vote, a Chair pro tem to preside at such meeting. 

 

 (b) Treasurer. [The Treasurer shall provide oversight of the funds and deposits of the 

Authority as prescribed by the Board.  The Treasurer shall discharge such other duties as 

prescribed by the Implementation Board.  The Treasurer shall file a bond in an amount 

determined by the Board with the Secretary and shall continue in office only so long as such 

bond continues in effect.] 

 

 (c) Secretary. [The Secretary shall keep or authorize others to keep a full and complete 

record of the meetings of the Implementation Board, the meetings of committees and officers 

with appropriate minutes, when necessary; shall supervise the keeping of the books and other 

records and ledgers and other written documents comprising the business and purpose of the 

Authority, and shall discharge such other duties as pertain to the office as prescribed by the 

Board.] 
 

Section 3.03 Removal from Office.   



 

 -4- 

 

Upon reasonable prior notice to all Implementation Board Members of the alleged reasons for 

dismissal, the Implementation Board, by an affirmative vote of a majority [require higher 

threshold?] of the Implementation Board Members, may remove a Chair, Treasurer, Secretary or 

other officer of the Implementation Board from such position whenever in its judgment the best 

interests of the Authority will be served thereby. 

 

Section 3.04 Vacancies.   

 

The Implementation Board shall fill any officer position which becomes vacant with a successor 

who shall hold office for the unexpired term and until such officer’s successor shall have been 

duly appointed and qualified. 

 

Section 3.05 Committees.  

 

Pursuant to Article IX, Section 4 of the Interlocal Agreement, the Continuum of Care Board shall 

act as Advisory Committee to the Implementation Board.   [anything else to add regarding the 

CoC Board and its role?]   

 

The Implementation Board has established (a) an Executive Committee comprised of 

_____________________ and (b) a Budget Committee comprised of 

__________________________.  The Implementation Board may, by resolution, establish other 

committees, each consisting of one or more Implementation Board Members, to advise the 

Implementation Board.  The designation of any such committees and the delegation thereto of 

authority shall not operate to relieve any Implementation Board Member of any responsibility 

imposed by law.  

 

Article IV. Meetings of the Implementation Board 

 

Section 4.01 Implementation Board Meetings. 

 

(a) General.  Regular meetings of the Implementation Board shall be held at least six times 

per year in accordance with Article X of the Interlocal Agreement.  The date, time and place of 

regular meetings for the upcoming calendar year shall be approved by resolution no later than the 

last regular meeting of the preceding calendar year. Regular and special meetings of the 

Implementation Board shall be held and noticed pursuant to the Interlocal Agreement and the 

chapter 42.30 RCW, as it may be amended from time to time (“Open Public Meetings Act”).   

 

At any meeting, a hearing of a particular matter may be continued to any subsequent meeting by 

a majority vote of the Implementation Board present, as provided in RCW 42.30.100.  Notice of 

any continued meeting shall be provided in the same manner as special meetings.  Meetings of 

the Implementation Board that fall on a holiday shall be rescheduled or cancelled by the 

Implementation Board. 

 

(b) Executive Sessions.  Executive sessions of the Implementation Board shall not be open to 

the public.  Executive Sessions may be attended by Members of the Implementation Board, 



 

 -5- 

Alternates, legal counsel to the Authority, authorized staff members and/or other individuals as 

authorized by the Co-Chairs presiding over the meeting so as long as the attorney client privilege 

will not be deemed waived by such persons participation in the executive session.   

 

Prior to convening an executive session, a Chairperson of the Implementation Board shall 

announce the executive session to those attending the meeting by stating the purpose of the 

executive session (in sufficient detail to identify the purpose as falling within one of those 

identified in the Open Public Meetings Act), and the time when the executive session shall end.  

The executive session may be extended by announcing to the public that it will be extended to a 

stated time.  The Implementation Board shall not reconvene open session until the time stated 

unless such meeting is reconvened solely for the purpose of ending the meeting without further 

discussion or action.  No final action shall be taken during an executive session.  Everything 

discussed during an executive session, and all written materials reviewed during an executive 

session, shall be considered confidential by law and shall not be publicly disclosed by any 

Member of the Implementation Board, any Alternate or attendee of the executive session absent 

a vote of the Implementation Board on the record in a public meeting.  This restriction applies to 

all executive session discussions and materials regardless of whether the Authority’s counsel is 

present. 

 

Section 4.02 Quorum. 

 

At all meetings of the Implementation Board, a quorum of the Implementation Board must be 

present in order to do business on any issue.  A quorum is defined in the Interlocal Agreement as 

a majority of the Board Members in number, excluding any Board Member who has given notice 

of withdrawal or whose position is vacant.   

 

For the sake of clarity, “doing business on any issue” means taking any “action” as defined in the 

Open Public Meetings Act.  As of the date of these Bylaws, “action” is defined in the Open 

Public Meetings Act (RCW 42.30.020(3)) as “the transaction of the official business of a public 

agency by a governing body including but not limited to receipt of public testimony, 

deliberations, discussions, considerations, reviews, evaluations, and final actions. ‘Final action’ 

means a collective positive or negative decision, or an actual vote by a majority of the members 

of a governing body when sitting as a body or entity, upon a motion, proposal, resolution, order, 

or ordinance.” 

 

Section 4.03 Participation in Implementation Board Meetings. 

 

Pursuant to the Interlocal Agreement, meetings of the Implementation Board shall be open to the 

public to the extent required by the Open Public Meetings Act.  Implementation Board Members 

may participate in a regular or special meeting in person or remotely as permitted in the Open 

Public Meetings Act.   

 

The Implementation Board shall allow members of the public to attend its meetings remotely as 

permitted in the Open Public Meetings Act.  At a minimum, the Implementation Board shall 

provide telephone access to members of the public wishing to participate remotely.  The 

telephone number shall be included in the meeting agenda available on the Authority’s website 



 

 -6- 

and through other means feasible to the Authority, including on the Authority’s public calendar 

and through social media, as applicable. 

 

Section 4.04 Conduct of Business. 

 

Meeting agendas will be set by the Co-Chairs in consultation with [specify any staff members?] 

and the Chief Executive Officer.  The Chief Executive Officer, or such officer’s designee, will 

provide the agenda, previous meeting minutes and other meeting materials to all Members of the 

Implementation Board in advance of any regular meetings.   

 

Authority staff will be responsive to Implementation Board Members with requests and support 

as needed.  Regular meeting agendas will include, but are not limited to, the approval of the 

minutes of the previous regular meeting and any special meetings held during the applicable time 

period and any other items for Implementation Board consideration and approval. Minutes shall 

be taken and recorded, whether in writing, by tape recording or by any other method deemed 

appropriate, for each meeting, and provided upon request as provided in Article X, Section 9 of 

the Interlocal Agreement. 

 

The Implementation Board may devote part or all of its meeting to an informational study 

session during which no comments from the audience will be permitted, unless the Co-Chairs or 

a majority of the Implementation Board from time to time should decide otherwise. 

 

Article V. Code of Conduct 

 

Section 5.01 Code of Conduct; Ethics. 

 

In accordance with, and as more fully set forth in, Article VIII, Section 4 of the Interlocal 

Agreement, Implementation Board Members (including Alternates, if any) shall conduct 

themselves in accordance with all applicable laws, including but not limited to, chapter 42.23 

RCW, as it may be amended from time to time (the “Code of Ethics for Municipal Officers”), the 

Open Public Meetings Act, the Interlocal Agreement, these Bylaws, and policies of the 

Authority.   

 

Section 5.02 Attorney-Client Privilege and Work Product. 

 

In accordance with, and as more fully set forth in, Article VIII, Section 4 of the Interlocal 

Agreement, the Authority, and not any individual Member of the Implementation Board, is the 

holder of any attorney-client privilege with the Authority’s counsel and any attorney work 

product protection. No individual Member of the Implementation Board shall make any 

disclosure or release any information which would result in the waiver of the attorney-client 

privilege or work product protection absent a vote of the Implementation Board majority on the 

record in a public meeting. 

 



 

 -7- 

Article VI. Approval of Bylaws 

 

Pursuant to Article III, Section 2(j)(vi) of the Interlocal Agreement, these Bylaws were approved 

by an affirmative vote of the Implementation Board pursuant to Resolution No. _______, 

adopted on ______________, 2022.  

 

 


	08102022 DRAFT V3 IB Agenda - August 10th, 2022
	07.09.2022 DRAFT v1 Implementation Board Retreat Minutes
	DRAFT Bylaws - KCRHA - Implementation Board.8.3.2022

